
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 87 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Friday, May 3, 2019 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 
 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

2. Invocation - Pastor James Smith 

3. Pledge of Allegiance (BW) 

4. Special Presentations 

a. 21st Century Partnership 

b. Preliminary Report by Courthouse Landscaping Committee 

c. Departmental Report-Finance Department 

  

Regular Business Meeting 
5. Public Comments 

6. Approval of Agenda 

7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - April 16, 2019 Regular Business Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - April 16, 2019 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of Minutes - April 26, 2019 Work Session (staff-CC) 

d. Approval of 2019 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

e. Approval of Resolution requesting Sales Tax Information from DOR and Naming a 

Designated Officer (staff-Finance) 

8. Approval of 2019 Budget Amendment #1 (staff-Finance) 

9. Approval of 2020 Budget and 2019 Mill Rate Schedule (staff-Finance) 

10. Appointments to the 2020 Census Complete Count Committee (staff-CC) 

11. Approval of 2019-2020 Employee Insurance Benefits (staff-CM) 

12. Authorization for Chairman to sign Supplemental Agreement #1 between GDOT and Putnam 

County for Local Bridge Replacement Project PI #0015658 CR 29 (Martins Mill Road) at Little 

River (staff-CM) 
 

Reports/Announcements 
13. County Manager Report 

14. County Attorney Report 

15. Commissioner Announcements 
 

Closing 
16. Adjournment 
  

1



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 2 of 87 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 
4. Special Presentations 

a. 21st Century Partnership 

b. Preliminary Report by Courthouse Landscaping Committee 

c. Departmental Report-Finance Department 

 

  

  

2



              Ms. Chrissy Miner  

 

 

 

Ms. Miner wears many hats in the middle Georgia community.  She 

currently serves as the President/CEO of the 21st Century Partnership 

and the Museum of Aviation Foundation. She is also a reservist in the 

U.S. Air Force Reserve.  

        

At the Partnership, she is responsible for the planning and execution of strategies required to 

enhance the military value of both Robins Air Force Base and the middle Georgia community.  

She works closely with community leaders, legislators and senior military officials to make 

middle Georgia as conducive as possible to build on current missions and accept new missions; 

thereby enhancing the 70-plus year partnership between the base and community. 

 

As the President/CEO of the Museum of Aviation Foundation, She is responsible for the day-

to-day operations of the Museum of Aviation at Robins Air Force Base - the 2nd largest Air 

Force museum in the nation.  She leads all fundraising efforts and a staff of 44 team members 

in overseeing Science Technology Engineering and Math (S.T.E.M.) educational programs to 

more than 52K students and teachers annually in the National STEM Academy ™, coffee and 

gift shop retail operations, facility and event management services, special events management, 

marketing and public relations as well as information technology under a combined operating 

budget of more than $4.4 Million annually.   

 

Finally, she continues to serve as a part-time Public Affairs Officer in the U.S. Air Force 

Reserve after more than two decades wearing the uniform. 

 

Prior to joining the museum, she was the Chief Operating Officer for the 21st Century 

Partnership. She has also worked for the Department of the Air Force as the Chief of Media 

Operations and the primary spokesperson for Robins Air Force Base. 

 

She is a graduate of the University of Georgia Fanning Institute’s Middle Georgia Regional 

Leadership Champions program, the Georgia Academy for Economic Development and the 

Robins Regional Chamber of Commerce’s Leadership Robins Region program.  She 

currently serves as an appointed member of the Air Force Materiel Command’s (AFMC) 

Civic Leader Program, the Middle Georgia State University President’s Advisory Council, 

the United Way’s Mission United Leadership Council and is also an active board member of 

the FireStarter Fab lab. 

 

Ms. Miner graduated with a Bachelor of Science degree in Business and Information 

Technology from Columbia College and earned a Master of Science degree in Management 

with a concentration in Public Affairs from the University of Maryland University College.  

3



Mr. Daniel Rhoades, Chief Operations Officer 

21st Century Partnership 

 
  
 

Mr. Rhoades joined the Partnership as the Director of 

Strategy in August of 2017 and became the Chief Operations 

Officer in August 2018. Dan discovered the Middle Georgia 

area after having spent summers in Macon as a child, 

choosing this location to settle after he retired from the US 

Navy.  He began his military career in the Army Reserve 

National Guard, transitioning to full time service with the 

U.S. Navy.  He retired in 2006 with 24 years of service, 

most of them in the Intelligence community.  He built his 

strategic portfolio at U.S. Space Command, U.S. Strategic 

Command and U.S. Transportation Command.  He spent 

over two years in Iraq providing intelligence analysis to the 

Iraqi government and other U.S. Allies.  During his time in 

Iraq, and on his return, he worked with L3, SAIC and X-Technologies as a contractor.  

He then joined Air Force Reserve Command as a civil service employee working the 

2005 BRAC.  He participated in the founding of the Air Force Strategic Basing and Total 

Force programs.  

 

As the Chief Operations Officer, Dan is responsible for development and execution of 

strategies and action plans to enable achievement of the Partnership’s goals.  The 21st 

Century Partnership is a Georgia nonprofit corporation and is the only enterprise 

dedicated solely to actively support the current missions of Robins Air Force Base and 

ensure that both the base and the Middle Georgia community are best postured to accept 

new base missions.  The Partnership accomplishes these goals principally by working 

closely with national, regional and local leadership along with community organizations 

to positively influence those primary factors that will likely be considered under a future 

Base Realignment and Closure (BRAC) process. For more than 20 years, the Partnership 

has been a key participant in all large-scale Department of Defense decision-making of 

impact to Robins Air Force Base.   

 

 

 

 

 
21st Century Partnership, 804 Park Drive, Warner Robins, GA 31088, 478-225-9005, www.21stcenturypartnership.com 

4



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 5 of 87 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 
7. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - April 16, 2019 Regular Business Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - April 16, 2019 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of Minutes - April 26, 2019 Work Session (staff-CC) 

d. Approval of 2019 Alcohol Licenses (staff-CC) 

e. Approval of Resolution requesting Sales Tax Information from DOR and Naming a 

Designated Officer (staff-Finance) 

  

5



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 8                                                                                     Approved 

April 16, 2019 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Tuesday, April 16, 2019 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, April 16, 2019 at approximately 

6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, 

Eatonton, Georgia 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Trevor Addison 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

Deputy County Manager Lisa Jackson 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 6:31 p.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Invocation 

Dr. Velde Hardy from Mt. Pleasant Baptist Church gave the invocation. 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance (TA) 

Commissioner Addison led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 8                                                                                     Approved 

April 16, 2019 

4. Special Presentations 

a. Presentation by Brianna Williams on Scouting 

Ms. Brianna Williams, Oconee District Executive for Boy Scouts of America spoke on the 

scouting program in Putnam County.  She reported there are four scouting units serving in 

Putnam County and they are in the process of forming a new girl’s troop.  She shared some of 

what they are doing and explained that volunteers are always welcome. 

b. Proclamation for Child Abuse Prevention Month 

A proclamation declaring April as Child Abuse Prevention month was presented to members of 

Mt. Pleasant Baptist Church. 

(Copy of proclamation made a part of the minutes on minute book page _________.) 

 

Zoning Public Hearing 
5. Request by Charles McMichael to rezone 3.603 acres at 862 Pea Ridge Road from AG-1 to 

R-2 [Map 092, part of Parcel 025, District 2] (staff-P&D) 

Chairman Webster opened the Zoning Public Hearing at approximately 6:41 p.m. 

 

Mr. Clayborn McMichael spoke in support of this request.  No one signed in to speak against this 

item.  Planning & Development staff recommendation was for approval with the following 

conditions: (1) the remaining 5.197 acres must be combined with the adjacent parcel: Map 092, 

Parcel 023, the acreage cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel (2) this rezoning shall be 

conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of 

the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 

Chairman Webster closed the Zoning Public Hearing at approximately 6:45 p.m. 

 

Motion to approve the request by Charles McMichael to rezone 3.603 acres at 862 Pea 

Ridge Road from AG-1 to R-2 [Map 092, part of Parcel 025] with the following conditions: 

(1) the remaining 5.197 acres must be combined with the adjacent parcel: Map 092, Parcel 

023, the acreage cannot be used or sold as a standalone parcel (2) this rezoning shall be 

conditioned upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat as stated in Section 66-165 

(e)(3) of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Addison. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
6. Public Comments 

None 

 

7. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

 

 

7



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 8                                                                                     Approved 

April 16, 2019 

8. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - March 18, 2019 Called Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - March 19, 2019 Regular Meeting and Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Approval of Minutes - April 12, 2019 Work Session (staff-CC) 

d. Approval of Final Plat-Harmony Farms Subdivision (staff-P&D) 

  

Commissioner Irvin asked to withdraw item b from the Consent Agenda. 

 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda items a., c., and d. 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

 

Motion to approve Consent Agenda item b. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Addison. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Addison 

Voting Abstaining: Commissioner Irvin (he was not present at the March 19, 2019 meeting) 

 

9. Approval of Appointment of Karen P. Owen as Associate Probate Judge (Probate Court) 

Judge Underkofler explained that she has decided to appoint Karen Owen as Associate Judge and 

it requires BOC approval.  Ms. Karen Owen commented that she would love the opportunity to 

serve in this role. 

Motion to approve the appointment of Karen Owen as Associate Probate Judge. 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

 

Chairman Webster called Mr. Wes Peters to speak on item 8d as he forgot earlier.  Mr. Peters 

spoke in support of the Final Plat approval for Harmony Farms Subdivision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 8                                                                                     Approved 

April 16, 2019 

10. 2020 Census Complete Count Committee Presentation and Approval of formula for 

committee appointments (BW) 

Mr. Bob Landau, Chairman of the Complete Count Committee, thanked the board for making 

him chairman. He explained his proposal for filling the committee was to appoint six people 

recommended by the City Council and 15 people recommended by the Board of Commissioners, 

for a total of 21 committee members.  This equals one committee member per 1000 citizens.  He 

requested that the appointments be made at the May 3, 2019 BOC meeting and advised that he 

will call the first committee meeting shortly thereafter.  He also explained the five phases of the 

census program: 1. education; 2. awareness; 3. motivation; 4. reminder; 5. recognition and 

distributed a handout.  Mr. Landau also introduced Mr. Tyrone Smith, Recruiting Assistant for 

US Census Bureau.  Mr. Smith informed the board that he is assigned to Putnam County and 

other counties in the area and he is here to let everyone know that the Census Bureau is hiring 

people from the community.  The positions pay $14.50 per hour and responsibilities will 

including going in neighborhoods and confirming addresses.  They are looking for about 36 

people fulltime and part-time. 

Motion to approve the formula for Complete Count Committee appointments, presented 

by Mr. Bob Landau, of one committee member per 1000 citizens. 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

 

Motion amended by Commissioner Addison to include, specifically 21 members with 15 

from the county and six from the city. 

Amended motion seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

 

11. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution to Revoke Consent to Amendment to the By-

Laws of EPWSA (BW) 

Chairman Webster explained that a resolution was passed by the county in 2010 to allow 

EPWSA to make changes to their bylaws without approval from the BOC.  A similar resolution 

was needed from the city and one was never passed. 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution to Revoke Consent to 

Amendment to the By-Laws of EPWSA. 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

(Copy of resolution made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 5 of 8                                                                                     Approved 

April 16, 2019 

12. Authorization to construct an Improved Landing Zone on the Administration Building 

property (staff-CM) 

County Manager Van Haute advised that the field next to the Administration Building has been 

used several times for emergency helicopter landings.  The rain keeps that area very damp, so he 

was requesting a 35x35 slab with a six-foot-wide walkway to be a designated site for air medivac 

use. 

Motion to authorize construction of an Improved Landing Zone on Administration 

Building property not to exceed $3000. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

The board requested that the location be verified. 

 

13. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution accepting Willow Forest Subdivision Roads 

(BW) 

County Attorney Nelson explained that citizens had asked about the ownership of the roads in 

Willow Forest Subdivision.  He advised that he reviewed records and it appears they are county 

roads and the resolution just clarifies that position. 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the Resolution accepting Willow Forest 

Subdivision Roads. 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

(Copy of resolution made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

 

Meeting recessed at approximately 8:02 p.m. 

Meeting reconvened at approximately 8:12 p.m. 

 

 

14. Appointment to the Putnam Development Authority (staff-CC) 

Mr. John Wojtas was nominated for appointment to the Putnam Development Authority. 

Nomination made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Addison. 

Voting for Mr. Wojtas: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

 

15. Appointment to the Lake Oconee Area Development Authority (staff-CC) 

Mr. Michael Feldman was nominated for appointment to the Lake Oconee Area 

Development Authority. 

Nomination made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting for Mr. Feldman: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner 

Sharp, Commissioner Addison 

 

 

 

10



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 6 of 8                                                                                     Approved 

April 16, 2019 

16. Appointment to the Putnam County Department of Family & Children Services Board (staff-

CC) 

Ms. Lucille Feldman was nominated for appointment to the Putnam County Department of 

Family & Children Services Board. 

Nomination made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Addison. 

Voting for Ms. Feldman: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner 

Sharp, Commissioner Addison 

 

17. Appointment to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority (staff-CC) 

Commissioner Bill Sharp was nominated for appointment to the Central Georgia Joint 

Development Authority. 

Nomination made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting for Commissioner Sharp: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, 

Commissioner Addison 

Voting Abstaining: Commissioner Sharp 

 

18. Confirmation of PDA appointments to the Central Georgia Joint Development Authority 

(staff-CC) 

Motion to confirm the appointments of Patty Burns and Walt Rocker III to the Central 

Georgia Joint Development Authority 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Addison. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

 

19. Recommendation for Appointment to the Hospital Authority - Post 1 (staff-CC) 

Motion to recommend Glenda Ridley, Nancy Chaklos, and David Owens for appointment 

to the Hospital Authority. 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

 

Reports/Announcements 
20. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reported the following: 

• paving has fallen behind and it’s come to recent attention that Womack Paving is no 

longer part owner of the asphalt plant.  He’s trying to get a meeting with Womack to 

discuss the situation but can't get hold of them – we might have to call the bond 

• our IT system has been actively hacked recently and we have upped security measures; 

we need to encourage lawmakers to put IT security under the same executive session 

privileges as real estate, legal, and personnel 

• wellness program is working, our insurance renewal will reflect a 4.11% decrease 

• Ask the FCC event will be here at the Administration Building on May 8 

• he will not be attending the ACCG Annual Conference in Savannah, he is instead going 

to Stephanie’s college graduation 

 

 

11



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 7 of 8                                                                                     Approved 

April 16, 2019 

21. County Attorney Report 

County Attorney Nelson advised that an Executive Session is needed. 

 

22. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner Irvin: reported on the first courthouse landscape committee meeting-multiple 

types of grass is growing, will need to figure out which is best and get it the same all over-also 

need to verify the operation of the irrigation system. 

 

Commissioner Brown: also reported on the landscape committee meeting-first step will be to 

establish good grass to build on. 

 

Commissioner Sharp: invited everyone to Holy Week services this week at 1st Baptist Church at 

12:00 followed by lunch at 12:30. 

 

Commissioner Addison: reminded everyone about the Child Abuse Prevention proclamation and 

pinwheel ceremony tomorrow morning at 9:30 on the courthouse square. 

 

Chairman Webster: none 

 

Executive Session 
23. Motion to enter closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4, if necessary, for personnel, 

litigation or real estate 

Motion to enter closed session as allowed by O.C.G.A. 50-14-4 for litigation & real estate 

purposes. 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

 

 

Meeting closed at approximately 8:37 p.m. 

 

 

24. Motion to reopen meeting and execute affidavit concerning the subject matter of the closed 

portion of the meeting 

Motion to reopen the meeting and execute the affidavit concerning the subject matter of the 

closed portion of the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Addison, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

(Copy of affidavit made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

 

Meeting reopened at approximately 9:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

12



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 8 of 8                                                                                     Approved 

April 16, 2019 

25. Action, if any, resulting from closed session 

No action was taken. 

 

Closing 
26. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Addison. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, 

Commissioner Addison 

  

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 9:31 p.m. 

 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

13



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 

 

 

 

 

The draft minutes of the April 16, 2019 Executive Session 

are available for Commissioner review in the Clerk’s 

office. 
 

14



DRAFT Work Session Minutes                                      Page 1 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

April 26, 2019 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 
 

 

Work Session 

Minutes 

Friday, April 26, 2019 ◊ 12:00 PM 

Savannah Marriott Riverfront – Mercer Room 

100 General McIntosh Boulevard 

Savannah, GA  31401 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, April 26, 2019 at approximately 

12:00 PM at the Savannah Marriott Riverfront, Mercer Room, 100 General McIntosh Boulevard, 

Savannah, Georgia 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

Commissioner Trevor Addison 

 

ABSENT 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

Deputy County Manager Lisa Jackson 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

HR Director Cynthia Miller 

 

 

Opening 

1. Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the work session to order at approximately 12:02 p.m.  He also led the 

Pledge of Allegiance.  

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.)  

 

 
 

 
 

 

15



DRAFT Work Session Minutes                                      Page 2 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

April 26, 2019 

Work Session 

2. Employee Insurance Discussions 

Chairman Webster introduced Mr. Johnathan Shaw of ShawHankins.  Mr. Shaw commented on 

the recent merger with NFP, the sixth largest broker in the world, and explained that there will 

not be any changes to the people, offices or services, but will be more resources available.  

Lunch was served and during that time Mr. Shaw went over the employee insurance proposal 

booklet and answered questions.  No action was taken. 

(Copy of benefits renewal booklet made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ 

to __________. 

 

Closing 

3. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the work session. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Addison. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp, Commissioner Addison. 

 

 

Work Session adjourned at approximately 12:59 p.m. 

 
 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

16



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

Office of the County Clerk 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 (main office) ◊ 706-485-1877 (direct line) ◊ 706-923-2345 (fax) 

lbutterworth@putnamcountyga.us ◊ www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 

Approval of 2019 Alcohol Licenses 

 
 

The following alcohol license applications (which are available for review in 
the County Clerk’s office) have been approved by the Sheriff, Fire Marshal, 

Building Inspector, and Tax Commissioner and are ready for BOC approval: 
 

Individual 

Name 

Business Name Address License Type 

Travis 

Williamson 

44 Draft House 

Growler Bar 

1122 Lake 

Oconee Parkway 

Retail Consumption on 

Premises: 

Beer, Wine & Liquor 

Travis 

Williamson 

44 Draft House 

Growler Bar 

1122 Lake 

Oconee Parkway 
Permanent Caterer 

Ashley Pruett The Pizza Place 
1133 Lake 

Oconee Parkway 

Retail Consumption on 

Premises: 

Beer, Wine & Liquor 
 

17



Linda Cook

April 5, 2019

Georgia Department of Revenue

 Resolution requesting sales tax information from the

Pass Resolution

 $50 to be charged to Finance Dept.

Please see attached information which explains

the reason for the resolution.

18



 

 1  

 

 

Georgia Department of Revenue 

Policy Bulletin ADMIN-2019-02 

Sales and Use Tax Information Available to Political Subdivision Designees 

 

Purpose:  The purpose of this Policy Bulletin is to clarify the process for political subdivisions to request 

and receive sales and use tax information in accordance with 2018 Senate Bill 371 (“SB 371”), which was 

signed into law on May 7, 2018 and became effective on July 1, 2018. Additionally, this Policy Bulletin 

addresses the confidentiality obligations which political subdivisions must comply with after receipt of 

any such information.  

Issue Date: January 14, 2019. 

Authority: O.C.G.A. §§ 48-2-1 and 48-2-15. 

Scope: A Policy Bulletin is intended to provide guidance to the public and to Department personnel. It is 

a written statement issued to apply principles of law to a specific set of facts or a general category of 

taxpayers. A Policy Bulletin is the Department's position and is binding on agency personnel until 

superseded or modified by a change in statute, regulation, court decision, or subsequent Policy Bulletin. 

Discussion:  

1. SB 371 Summary 

SB 371 allows counties, municipalities, and consolidated governments (collectively, “political 

subdivisions”) in Georgia to: (1) request a report of vendors who filed a sales tax return with amounts 

attributable to the political subdivision for a designated period (the “Report”); and (2) after receiving the 

Report, the political subdivision may request that the Department validate that a taxpayer within the 

political subdivision is remitting sales tax to the appropriate political subdivision.  

2. Sales and Use Tax Filer Report 

Before the Department can provide the Report, the political subdivision must request the Report 

by sending an official resolution to public.disclosure@dor.ga.gov. The resolution must contain the contact 

information (name, address, phone number, and e-mail address) of a designated official, who must be a 

finance officer or taxing official of the political subdivision (the “Designee”). The resolution must also 

state a “designated period” of tax information the Designee wishes to receive, such designated period not 

to exceed one year. Please note that the Department is only able to include information of vendors for tax 

periods occurring after July 1, 2018, the effective date of SB 371. The Designee will be the only individual 

authorized to receive the Report from the Department.  

19



 

 2  

 

Reports provided by the Department will include the sales tax certificate information for vendors 

who have reported sales tax attributable to the requesting political subdivision in the designated period.  

Please note that, due to statutory sales and use tax reporting requirements, the Department only has county-

level information to provide to municipalities and consolidated governments.   

Each political subdivision may make one Report request per year. The Department will charge a 

fee of $50.00 to the requesting political subdivisions for providing each Report. 

3. Validation of the Report 

The initial Report provided to a Designee will list all vendors remitting any sales tax to the 

requesting political subdivision.  After receiving the initial Report, the Designee of each political 

subdivision may request that the Department validate up to 10 vendors which are located within their 

political subdivision, whether or not such vendors appeared on the Report.   

All validation requests must come from the Designee and contain the business name and location 

address of each vendor being validated.  Additionally, if available, the validation request should include 

the taxpayer identification number, the reason the validation is being requested, and any other additional 

information the Designee wishes to include. Validation requests must be emailed to 

public.disclosure@dor.ga.gov.  

Within 30 days of receipt of each validation request, the Department will provide the Designee 

with a response validating whether each vendor is reporting sales tax attributable to the proper county.  

For any vendors which the Department was unable to validate, the Department will take other appropriate 

action as provided by law.  The Department will charge a fee of $50.00 to the requesting political 

subdivision for providing the validation. 

4. Confidentiality of Reports and Validation 

Any information furnished pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1) is strictly privileged and 

confidential. The political subdivision Designee may NOT contact any of the taxpayers identified in the 

confidential information.  

It is unlawful for any person to divulge confidential tax information in violation of O.C.G.A. § 48-

2-15(d.1). Any person who violates this law is subject to the same penalties that would apply to an 

employee of the Department of Revenue for the improper divulgence of confidential tax information. 

 

FOR MORE INFORMATION 

 

For more information on this subject, please email public.disclosure@dor.ga.gov or visit the 

Department’s website at dor.georgia.gov. 

 

20



1 

 

 
 

RESOLUTION REQUESTING SALES TAX INFORMATION 

FROM THE GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE  

PURSUANT TO O.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1) AND  

NAMING A DESIGNATED OFFICER FOR ALL RELATED PURPOSES 
  

 WHEREAS, Georgia Code (O.C.G.A.) § 48-2-15, as amended in 2018, authorizes the 

Commissioner of the Georgia Department of Revenue (hereinafter the “DOR Commissioner”) to 

provide certain confidential sales tax information to the “designated finance officer or taxing 

official” of counties and other local governments; and 

 WHEREAS, more specifically, O.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1) authorizes the DOR 

Commissioner to provide to a local government’s designated officer, upon request, certain 

information relating to vendors that have submitted sales tax reports within the period of time set 

forth in that request; and 

 WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1) further allows the local government’s designated 

officer to request that the DOR Commissioner validate, from time to time, the political 

subdivision to which sales taxes are being remitted by taxpayers with a business location within 

that local government’s boundaries; and 

 WHEREAS, Putnam County desires to obtain the sales tax information described in the 

above Georgia Code Section;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of Putnam 

County, as follows: 

1. The Board of Commissioners hereby designates the following finance or tax official 

as Putnam County’s Designated Officer for all purposes described in O.C.G.A. § 48-

2-15(d.1): 

Linda Cook 

       117 Putnam Drive, Suite A 

Eatonton, GA 31024 

lcook@putnamcountyga.us 

706-485-1879 
 

2. The Board of Commissioners hereby requests that the DOR Commissioner (or his/her 

designee) furnish to the above-named Designated Officer all vendor sales tax 

information described in O.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1)(1) for Putnam County for the 

following time period: 7/1/18 to 4/30/19. 

 

21



2 

 

3. In accordance with O.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1)(2)(B) and following receipt of the 

information described in Paragraph 2, above, the Designated Officer is hereby 

authorized to request validation by the DOR Commissioner of the political 

subdivision to which one or more vendors/taxpayers with a business location in 

Putnam County have remitted sales taxes for the designated period, with such 

validation request to contain the business name and location address of each such 

vendor/taxpayer and such other information as may assist the DOR Commissioner in 

responding to such validation request; 

4.  The Designated Officer shall use such information only in the discharge of his/her 

duties and shall maintain the confidentiality of such information as required by 

O.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1); and 

5. The Board of Commissioners shall comply with all confidentiality requirements of 

O.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1), including, but not limited to, the requirements that 1) such 

information may only be discussed by members of the Board of Commissioners in 

executive session and 2) members of the Board of Commissioners shall recuse 

themselves from such executive session discussions in the event of a conflict of 

interest as described in the above Georgia Code Section. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall become effective upon its 

approval by the Putnam County Board of Commissioners, and the official named above shall 

remain Putnam County’s Designated Officer for all purposes under O.C.G.A. § 48-2-15(d.1) 

until further action of the Board of Commissioners. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Putnam County Clerk is hereby directed to 

provide a certified copy of this Resolution to the Georgia Department of Revenue via email 

(public.disclosure@dor.ga.gov) or to otherwise transmit a copy of this Resolution as may be 

directed by the Georgia Department of Revenue. 

 PASSED AND RESOLVED this 3rd day of May 2019.   

 

     PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

 

By: ____________________________________ 

Billy Webster, Chairman 

 

 

     ATTEST: ____________________________________

       Lynn Butterworth, County Clerk 

[Affix Seal] 

22



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 23 of 87 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 
8. Approval of 2019 Budget Amendment #1 (staff-Finance) 

  

23



 2019 Budget Amendment #1

General Fund Revenues:

Increase 

(Decrease) to 

Current Budget Total

Interest & Miscellaneous:

Interest Earned 40,000 

Reimb - Damaged Property 45,425 

Miscellaneous Revenue 31,075 

Donations 9,252 

                         Total Interest & Miscellaneous 125,752 

Transfer from Other Funds 12,000 

Appropriation from Fund Balance 199,124 

            Total General Fund Revenue Adjustment 336,876

General Fund Expenses:

District Commissioners 12,265

General Administration 283,994

Magistrate Court 13,280

Sheriff and Jail Operations 12,000

Fire Stations & Rescue 250

Recreation 4,002

Planning & Development 6,085

Putnam Development Authority 5,000

            Total General Fund Expenditure Adjustment 336,876

Special Service District Revenues:

Transfer from Other Funds 314,124

LMIG Fund:

Revenues 528,955

Expenditures 528,955

24



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 25 of 87 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 
9. Approval of 2020 Budget and 2019 Mill Rate Schedule (staff-Finance) 

  

25



             2020 Budget & 2019 Mill Rate Schedule (Fiscal Year Oct. 2019 – Sept. 2020)  

  May                                                June                 July 

                  

                       August   September 

 

 

 

 

 

Meetings dates are in green, other major dates are in yellow                             
 
May 15 - Assessment notices mailed by Tax Assessor’s Office 
May 24 - Distribute budget packages  
June 24- Budget packages due to the Finance Department 

July 1 -   Estimated last day to appeal assessments (45 days after estimated mailing date) 
July 5   - Preliminary digest available 
July 9   - Budget requests submitted to the Board of Commissioners 
July 11 - Advertise all budget work sessions       
July 19 - First budget work session 
July 22 - First budget work session continued and guidance to County Manager on proposed budget 
July 31 - Proposed budget submitted to the Board of Commissioners 

August 1   - Advertise proposed budget, public hearing on budget, meeting to adopt budget, and 
                     Advertise First mill rate public hearing  
August 8 – Advertise second mill rate public hearing 
August 9   - Second budget work session (for comments from departments on proposed budget) and 
                     First mill rate public hearing 
August 20 - Public Hearing on budget (with regular meeting) and Second mill rate public hearing 
August 22 - Advertise final public hearing on mill rate, 5 Year History of Mill Rate, and  
                     meeting to adopt budget 
August 30 - Adopt budget 

September 6 – Final (third) public hearing on mill rate  
                           Adopt mill rate in regular meeting 

S M T W T F S 

      1   2 3  4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 

19 20 21 22 23 24 25 

26 27 28 29 30 31  

S M T W T F S 

 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30 31       

S M T W T F S 

           1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 

30       

S M T W T F S 

             

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 

29 30           

S M T W T F S 

       1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 

11 12 13 14 15 16 17 

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 

26



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 27 of 87 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 
10. Appointments to the 2020 Census Complete Count Committee (staff-CC) 

  

27



Applicants for 2020 Census Complete Count Committee                                                                 5/2/2019

NAME ADDRESS DISTRICT BACKGROUND

APPLICATION 

DATE

Walter Hatcher

100 Barrington Hall 

Drive 3

Retired Military Officer; 

College grad 4/12/2019

David J. Owens

116 Rock Springs 

Road 3

Retired Healthcare 

Management; BS-

Geography & Education, BS-

Environmental Health, 

Masters-Health Science; 9 

years in Public Health 4/15/2019

Charles Pate 88 Whitney Street 3

Retired; BS-Clemson; MS-

UGA 4/15/2019

Donnald Cottrell

144 Rock Springs 

Road 3

Retired; High School; Some 

College; 22 years Putnam 

Board of Assessors 4/17/2019

Gail Farmer

101 S. Bay Road 

#1004 3

Retired; Northside HS-

Atlanta; 1 year University 

of Tennessee; Certified 

Employee Benefits Specialist 4/18/2019

John T. Mitchell Sr. 195 Lakeshore Drive 4

Retired Military (USAF); MS-

Industrial Mgmt, BS-

Accounting; worked with 

P&D 4/24/2019

Tammy Lankford

267 Possum Point 

Drive 4 Real Estate Broker 4/30/2019

Larry G. Manley

249 Carter Dearman 

Road 2

Retired; High School, 2 

years College; served on 

Hospital Authority, Board of 

Tax Assessors, former 

County Surveyor 5/2/2019

City Appointees:

Janelle Reid 305 Parkway Drive Ward 1

Leila Williams 101 Redbud Drive Ward 2

Janie Reid 103 Beech Avenue Ward 3

Melissa Williams 209 Tecumseh Avenue Ward 4

Lynsol Terrell 100 Candler Court Ward 4

Eugene Hubert 405 Church Street Ward 4

Page 1 of 1

28



PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 

706-485-5826 

www.putnamcountyga.us 
 

 
 

NOTICE 
 
 
The Putnam County Board of Commissioners is seeking individuals interested in 
serving on the 2020 Census Complete Count Committee.  To be eligible to 
serve on the committee, individuals must be residents of Putnam County. 
 
The Complete Count Committee plans and implements locally-based outreach 
campaigns that raise awareness of the census and encourage participation.  
Members of the committee serve without compensation. 
 
Interested persons should submit an application to the Putnam County Board 
of Commissioners, 117 Putnam Drive, Suite A, Eatonton, Georgia 31024.  
Applications will be accepted until the positions are filled.  The board application 
form can be found on the county website at www.putnamcountyga.us (in the 
“How Do I?” section) or by calling 706-485-5826. 
 
 
04/04/2019 & 04/11/2019 
 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 44 of 87 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 
11. Approval of 2019-2020 Employee Insurance Benefits (staff-CM) 

  

44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



Putnam County Board of Commissioners
Medical Renewal Analysis

Low High

Employee 34 53

Employee + Spouse 6 9

Employee + Child(ren) 8 6

Family 18 13

Combined Annual Plan Totals

*In a hospital setting; Outpatient surgery is $150 then any applicable coinsurance and no dedutible at a freestanding surgical center. 

** Deductible applies to doctor and other services, not to facility fees. 

***In a hospital setting; Outpatient surgery is $150 then 0% coinsurance and no deductible at a freestanding surgical center.

Combined Annual Cost Difference (%) -4.1%

This comparison is intended to illustrate the carrier's proposed services and rates and should not be relied upon to fully determine benefits and rates. Refer to carrier's renewal/proposal for a complete representation of

coverage terms and conditions.

$1,606,022

Combined Annual Cost Difference ($) ($68,670)

$1,674,692

-

-

Renewal

$1,574.60 $1,815.92

Monthly Premium by Plan $60,454 $73,381

Annual Premium by Plan $725,451 $880,571

$1,608.08

$61,739

$740,872

$1,925.74

$77,818

$933,820

Current

$1,161.00

Rates by Plan Low Plan High Plan 

Out of Pocket Maximum (Single/Family)

$7,500 / $22,500 $10,500 / $31,500

$23,700 / $47,400 $23,700 / $47,400

50% / 50% 50% / 50%

$516.26 $595.38

$1,084.16 $1,250.31

Out of Network Benefits

Coinsurance (Plan/Member)

$21,450 / $42,900

50% / 50%

$10,500 / $31,500

$21,450 / $42,900

50% / 50%

$1,006.71

Tier 5 (Nonpreferred Specialty) N/A N/A N/A

Current

$527.23

$1,028.11

$1,107.20

Current

$631.38

$1,325.92

$1,231.21

N/A

Deductible (Single/Family)

Tier 3 (Nonpreferred) N/A $60 100% Coinsurance $60

Tier 4 (Preferred Specialty) N/A 30% up to $300 per Rx 100%  Coinsurance 25% to $350

$7,500 / $22,500

Tier 1 (Preferred Value/Generic) $15 $15 $15 $15

Tier 2 (Preferred Brand) N/A $35 100% Coinsurance $35

Prescription Drugs

Rx Deductible None None None None

Urgent Care

Emergency Room

Hospital and Emergency

$150 then Coinsurance $150 then Coinsurance $350 $350

$500 then Ded & Coinsurance

Deductible & Coinsurance*

$60

Deductible & Coinsurance

Deductible & Coinsurance*

$60

Family

$7,150 $7,900

$14,300 $14,300 $15,800

Inpatient Hospital

Outpatient Hospital

$7,900Out-of-Pocket Maximum Single

Deductible Single

Family

Coinsurance (Plan/Member)

$2,500

$7,500

70% / 30%

$7,150

$3,500

$10,500

70% / 30%

$2,500 $3,500

$7,500 $10,500

70% / 30% 70% / 30%

Office Visits (PCP/Specialist)

Provider Network OAPOS OAPOS Open Access POS Open Access POS

In Network Benefits

$30 / $60 $25 / $50 $30 / $60 $30 / $60

$15,800

$500 then Ded & Coinsurance** Deductible & Coinsurance

Deductible & Coinsurance*** Deductible & Coinsurance*

$75 $75

July 1, 2019

Anthem BCBS Anthem BCBS

Current Renewal
Low Plan High Plan Low Plan High Plan 

Plan Name NS Blue Essential OAP12 2.5K/30 NS Blue Open Access OAP5 3.5K/30 OAP12 2.5K/30 7.9K C OAP5 3.5K/30 7.9K AE

Page 1 CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY

Alternate 1
65



Putnam County Board of Commissioners
Medical Renewal Analysis

Low High

Employee 34 53

Employee + Spouse 6 9

Employee + Child(ren) 8 6

Family 18 13

Combined Annual Plan Totals

*In a hospital setting; Outpatient surgery is $150 then any applicable coinsurance and no dedutible at a freestanding surgical center. 

** Deductible applies to doctor and other services, not to facility fees. 

***In a hospital setting; Outpatient surgery is $150 then 0% coinsurance and no deductible at a freestanding surgical center.

Combined Annual Cost Difference (%) - -1.0%

This comparison is intended to illustrate the carrier's proposed services and rates and should not be relied upon to fully determine benefits and rates. Refer to carrier's renewal/proposal for a complete representation of

coverage terms and conditions.

Current Alternate

$1,674,692 $1,658,471

Combined Annual Cost Difference ($) - ($16,221)

Monthly Premium by Plan $61,739 $77,818 $60,454 $77,752

Annual Premium by Plan $740,872 $933,820 $725,451 $933,019

$1,028.11 $1,231.21 $1,006.71 $1,230.15

$1,608.08 $1,925.74 $1,574.60 $1,924.09

$527.23 $631.38 $516.26 $630.84

$1,107.20 $1,325.92 $1,084.16 $1,324.78

Coinsurance (Plan/Member) 50% / 50% 50% / 50% 50% / 50% 50% / 50%

Rates by Plan Current Current Low Plan (Renewal) High Plan (Alternate)

Deductible (Single/Family) $7,500 / $22,500 $10,500 / $31,500 $7,500 / $22,500 $10,500 / $31,500

Out of Pocket Maximum (Single/Family) $21,450 / $42,900 $21,450 / $42,900 $23,700 / $47,400 $23,700 / $47,400

Out of Network Benefits

Tier 4 (Preferred Specialty) N/A 30% up to $300 per Rx 100%  Coinsurance 30% up to $300 per Rx 

Tier 5 (Nonpreferred Specialty) N/A N/A N/A N/A

Tier 2 (Preferred Brand) N/A $35 100% Coinsurance $35

Tier 3 (Nonpreferred) N/A $60 100% Coinsurance $60

Rx Deductible None None None None

Tier 1 (Preferred Value/Generic) $15 $15 $15 $15

Emergency Room $150 then Coinsurance $150 then Coinsurance $350 $350

Prescription Drugs

Outpatient Hospital Deductible & Coinsurance* Deductible & Coinsurance* Deductible & Coinsurance*** Deductible & Coinsurance*

Urgent Care $60 $60 $75 $75

Hospital and Emergency

Inpatient Hospital $500 then Ded & Coinsurance Deductible & Coinsurance $500 then Ded & Coinsurance** Deductible & Coinsurance

$7,900

Family $14,300 $14,300 $15,800 $15,800

Coinsurance (Plan/Member) 70% / 30% 70% / 30% 70% / 30% 100% / 0%

Out-of-Pocket Maximum Single $7,150 $7,150 $7,900

$3,500

Family $7,500 $10,500 $7,500 $10,500

Office Visits (PCP/Specialist) $30 / $60 $25 / $50 $30 / $60 $30 / $60

Deductible Single $2,500 $3,500 $2,500

Provider Network OAPOS OAPOS Open Access POS OAPOS

In Network Benefits

Low Plan High Plan Low Plan (Renewal) High Plan (Alternate)

Plan Name NS Blue Essential OAP12 2.5K/30 NS Blue Open Access OAP5 3.5K/30 OAP12 2.5K/30 7.9K C OAP5 3.5K/0 7.9K AE

July 1, 2019

Anthem BCBS Anthem BCBS

Current Alternate

Page 2 CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY

Alternate 2 66



Putnam County Board of Commissioners
Medical Renewal Analysis

Low High

Employee 34 53

Employee + Spouse 6 9

Employee + Child(ren) 8 6

Family 18 13

Combined Annual Plan Totals

*In a hospital setting; Outpatient surgery is $150 then any applicable coinsurance and no dedutible at a freestanding surgical center. 

** Deductible applies to doctor and other services, not to facility fees. 

***In a hospital setting; Outpatient surgery is $150 then 0% coinsurance and no deductible at a freestanding surgical center.

Combined Annual Cost Difference (%) - 0.1%

This comparison is intended to illustrate the carrier's proposed services and rates and should not be relied upon to fully determine benefits and rates. Refer to carrier's renewal/proposal for a complete representation of

coverage terms and conditions.

Current Alternate

$1,674,692 $1,676,623

Combined Annual Cost Difference ($) - $1,931

Monthly Premium by Plan $61,739 $77,818 $60,454 $79,264

Annual Premium by Plan $740,872 $933,820 $725,451 $951,172

$1,028.11 $1,231.21 $1,006.71 $1,254.09

$1,608.08 $1,925.74 $1,574.60 $1,961.53

$527.23 $631.38 $516.26 $643.11

$1,107.20 $1,325.92 $1,084.16 $1,350.56

Coinsurance (Plan/Member) 50% / 50% 50% / 50% 50% / 50% 50% / 50%

Rates by Plan Current Current Low Plan (Renewal) High Plan (Alternate)

Deductible (Single/Family) $7,500 / $22,500 $10,500 / $31,500 $7,500 / $22,500 $10,500 / $31,500

Out of Pocket Maximum (Single/Family) $21,450 / $42,900 $21,450 / $42,900 $23,700 / $47,400 $17,250 / $34,500

Out of Network Benefits

Tier 4 (Preferred Specialty) N/A 30% up to $300 per Rx 100%  Coinsurance 30% up to $300 per Rx 

Tier 5 (Nonpreferred Specialty) N/A N/A N/A N/A

Tier 2 (Preferred Brand) N/A $35 100% Coinsurance $35

Tier 3 (Nonpreferred) N/A $60 100% Coinsurance $60

Rx Deductible None None None None

Tier 1 (Preferred Value/Generic) $15 $15 $15 $15

Emergency Room $150 then Coinsurance $150 then Coinsurance $350 $350

Prescription Drugs

Outpatient Hospital Deductible & Coinsurance* Deductible & Coinsurance* Deductible & Coinsurance*** Deductible & Coinsurance*

Urgent Care $60 $60 $75 $75

Hospital and Emergency

Inpatient Hospital $500 then Ded & Coinsurance Deductible & Coinsurance $500 then Ded & Coinsurance** Deductible & Coinsurance

$5,750

Family $14,300 $14,300 $15,800 $11,500

Coinsurance (Plan/Member) 70% / 30% 70% / 30% 70% / 30% 100% / 0%

Out-of-Pocket Maximum Single $7,150 $7,150 $7,900

$3,500

Family $7,500 $10,500 $7,500 $10,500

Office Visits (PCP/Specialist) $30 / $60 $25 / $50 $30 / $60 $30 / $60

Deductible Single $2,500 $3,500 $2,500

Provider Network OAPOS OAPOS Open Access POS OAPOS

In Network Benefits

Low Plan High Plan Low Plan (Renewal) High Plan (Alternate)

Plan Name NS Blue Essential OAP12 2.5K/30 NS Blue Open Access OAP5 3.5K/30 OAP12 2.5K/30 7.9K C OAP5 3.5K/0 5.75K AE

July 1, 2019

Anthem BCBS Anthem BCBS

Current Alternate

Page 3 CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY

Alternate 3
67



 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at 

the meeting, including the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the 
public except by a majority vote of a quorum present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter 

during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to 

allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required 
to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 706-485-2776 to allow the County to make 

reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 68 of 87 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 
12. Authorization for Chairman to sign Supplemental Agreement #1 between GDOT and Putnam 

County for Local Bridge Replacement Project PI #0015658 CR 29 (Martins Mill Road) at Little 

River (staff-CM) 

  

68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87


	Top
	1. 20190503 BOC Welcome
	2. 20190503 BOC Invocation
	3. 20190503 BOC Pledge
	4. 20190503 BOC Presentations
	MIner Bio - 2019.pdf
	Rhoades Bio.pdf

	5. 20190503 BOC Public Comments
	6. 20190503 BOC Agenda Approval
	7. 20190503 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 04-16-19 BOC Minutes.pdf
	Executive Session Minutes Agenda Item.pdf
	DRAFT 04-26-19 BOC Work Session Minutes.pdf
	Agenda Item-Alcohol Licenses.pdf
	Sales Tax Resolution Agenda Item Request Form.pdf
	Sales Tax Info (SB 371) DOR Policy Bulletin 01.14.19.pdf
	Sales Tax Info (SB 371) Putnam County Designated Officer Resolution2.pdf

	8. 20190503 BOC Budget Amendment
	2019 Budget Amendment #1.pdf

	9. 20190503 BOC Budget-Mill Rate Schedule
	2020 Budget  Mill Rate Calendar - Increase in Mill Rate.pdf

	10. 20190503 BOC CCC
	Chart of Applicants for Census Complete Count Committee4.pdf
	Census Committee.pdf
	CCC Application-Hatcher-edited.pdf
	CCC Application-Owens-edited.pdf
	CCC Application-Pate-edited.pdf
	CCC Application-Cottrell.pdf
	CCC Application-Farmer-edited.pdf
	CCC Application-Mitchell-edited.pdf
	CCC Application-Lankford-edited.pdf
	CCC Application-Manley.pdf
	CCC Application-Reid, Janelle-edited.pdf
	CCC Application-Williams, Leila.pdf
	CCC Application-Reid, Janie-edited.pdf
	CCC Application-Williams, Melissa-edited.pdf
	CCC Application-Terrell-edited.pdf
	CCC Application-Hubert-edited.pdf

	11. 20190503 BOC Employee Insurance
	2019 Benefits Renewal Booklet 042619-pages-1-19.pdf
	2019 Medical Plan Changes.pdf
	2019 Proposal Putnam County BOC - Med Ren  Alts-edited.pdf

	12. 20190503 BOC Martins Mill Bridge
	GDOT-Martins Mill Road Bridge.pdf

	13. 20190503 BOC CM Report
	14. 20190503 BOC CA Report
	15. 20190503 BOC Comm Announcements
	19. 20190503 BOC Adjourn
	Bottom

